PLANNING COMMISSION

Tuesday, August 09, 2022 at 7:00 PM
HYBRID: Council Chambers & Zoom (details below)

AGENDA

7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE
TOPICS FROM THE FLOOR (Not on Public Hearing Agenda): Limited to five minutes per topic
CONSENT AGENDA
A. Planning Commission Minutes Dated July 12, 2022
DISCUSSION ITEMS

B. Architectural Design Guidelines Review for 230 Strand Street (Columbia County
Courthouse Annex)

C. Order and Conduct of Public Hearing
D. Planning Commission Meeting Start Time

E. Oregon's Measure 109 related to Psilocybin and land use implications
PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT

E. Planning Department Activity Report - July
PROACTIVE ITEMS
ADJOURNMENT
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: September 13, 2022

VIRTUAL MEETING DETAILS

Join: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81850997310?pwd=WmRRMnEQeTVxbFFNYTUzQzBoWTJXZz09
Meeting ID: 818 5099 7310
Passcode: 039589

Dial by your location: +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing
impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the
meeting to City Hall at 503-397-6272.

Be a part of the vision and get involved...volunteer for a City Board or Commission! For more information or for
an application, go to www.sthelensoregon.gov or call 503-366-8217.




Item A.

PLANNING COMMISSION

Tuesday, July 12, 2022, at 7:00 PM

DRAFT MINUTES

Members Present: Chair Dan Cary
Vice Chair Russ Hubbard
Commissioner Sheila Semling
Commissioner Steve Toschi
Commissioner Jennifer Pugsley
Commissioner Russ Low

Members Absent: Commissioner Audrey Webster

Staff Present: City Planner Jacob Graichen
Associate Planner Jennifer Dimsho
Community Development Admin Assistant Christina Sullivan
Councilor Patrick Birkle

Others: Heidi Oliver
Autumn Oliver
Brady Preheim
Alena Erickson
Vicky Njust
John Brewington
Val O'Farrell
Abigail Dawson
Cyndi Furseth
Jeanne Morain
Shauna Harrison
Matt & Andrea Snook
Courtni Maddox
Matt Harrison

CALL TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE
TOPICS FROM THE FLOOR (Not on Public Hearing Agenda): Limited to five minutes per topic
There were no topics from the floor.
CONSENT AGENDA
A. Planning Commission Minutes Dated June 14, 2022

Motion: Upon Vice Chair Hubbard’s motion and Commissioner Semling’s second, the Planning
Commission unanimously approved the Draft Minutes as amended by dated June 14, 2022. [AYES: Vice
Chair Hubbard, Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Toschi, Commissioner Low, Commissioner Pugsley;
NAYS: None]

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 1 0of 9




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA (times are earliest start time)

B. 7:05 p.m. Planned Development at undeveloped property southeast of the
intersection of Pittsburg Road & Meadowview Drive - Westlake Consultants

City Planner Jacob Graichen presented the staff report dated May 17, 2022. He explained how the
Planned Overlay zone creates a blanket zone over the existing zoning map which allows some
flexibilities. This overlay was for a 12-acre site that was composed of two lots. He mentioned it was
annexed into the city the previous year. He said the overlay zone is supposed to apply to properties
that are over two acres. Because one of the lots is under that measurement, one of the stipulations
was that both properties were included in the development proposal.

He said the overlay zone will stay with the property, and the applicant does have a proposal that shows
the use of this overlay zone in the design. He did mention it was possible that they could decide not to
move forward and there could be someone who comes through later and uses the overlay zone. So,
this provides a variety of flexibilities to the conventional zoning standards for the developer.

He said there were two significant wetlands on this property. He mentioned the complex on the south
side had a 50-foot protection zone buffer and he said there was a more linear wetland in the middle of
the site that had a 75-foot wetland protection zone. He said properties that have large wetland
protection zones are good candidates for a Planned Development Overlay as it is a good tool for them
to achieve a density given these types of encumbrances.

Commissioner Toschi said since this was a simultaneous application for the Planned Overlay and a
Subdivision Preliminary Plat, he felt it necessary to consider all the applicant planned to do with the
Subdivision Plat to consider what they do with the Overlay Zone. Graichen said the overlay zone is not
a decision made by the Commission; it is a recommendation. Commissioner Toschi asked if they did
not have an overlay zone, would the second application be possible? Graichen said there was a
condition in the second application for a Subdivision that there needed to be an overlay for the
proposed application.

Commissioner Toschi expressed concern about the way this application was being presented to the
Commission as he felt there was a significant difference in what was presented to the Commission at
the time of the annexation. He said he thought they should hear the testimony from the public before
there was a decision made on either application. He said the applicant asked to be annexed in with R7
zoning for this property and now appears to be requesting a different proposal.

Chair Cary said the testimony provided for this application needed to be directly related to the
proposal. They were to make their decision for this application based on the staff report, the proposal
provided, and the testimony that applied to the specific criteria of this application. He did not agree
that they should hear all the testimony for both applications before deciding.

Motion: Commissioner Toschi made a motion to consider both applications before deciding on the
Planned Overlay Zone. Commissioner Pugsley seconded the motion. There was no call to vote. Motion
fails.

Morain, Jeanne. Applicant. Morain presented some history on the property. She mentioned they
were asking for the Planned Development Overlay and why they asked for R7 zoning. Six potential
buyers of the property were interested in R5 zoning which is a higher density zone level, and they were
looking to squeeze in as many properties as they could to make the most money. She said the
developer they chose was not looking to fill the property with a ton of houses. They were willing to
honor her late father-in-law’s requests of doing what was right for the community and keeping the area
at a lower density. She said the property meant a lot to her family and they wanted to leave a legacy
of their family that made the local community proud. She mentioned they hired a consultant to give

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 2 of 12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

them a report on the best use of the property based on what was needed within the Urban Growth
Boundary. She also said they spoke to a lot of the neighbors to get feedback on what they would like
to see or what their issues were with the other subdivisions that had been created before the
consideration of this application. She also mentioned they had already done the wetland delineation.

Sandblast, Ken. Sandblast is with Westlake Consultants and a representative of the applicant. He said
the overlay would not change the zone. It was simply a way in which the land will be developed, and it
provides the flexibility to protect the resources on the property. He said the overlay was not changing
the underlying zoning or the density of the zones.

Chair Cary asked,with the overlay zone, if all the lots still be R7 sized lots. Sandblast said no, the
tradeoff for protecting the community wetlands and resources is that the density is transferred to the
developable areas.

Commissioner Toschi asked if Westlake Consultants was involved in the annexation process. Sandblast
said no. Commissioner Toschi asked if they read the report from the annexation to determine that the
wetlands were not developable. Sandblast said no he did not read the report, but that wetlands are
always an area that cannot be impacted. He mentioned there is a very large setback around these
wetlands which result in a smaller acreage available to develop. Commissioner Toschi asked if the
property was able to be developed without the overlay. Sandblast said yes, but it would result in a
more difficult management of the wetlands and less density.

Vorm, Clark. Vorm is with Noyes Development. He is also a representative of the applicant. He said
they wanted to build a development that closely matched what was already surrounding the property.
He said they hoped to provide parking on streets and not to pack houses in. He said he understands
that those who own land around property that is being developed do not like it. He said their company
takes pride in speaking with the neighbors to see what could make their development better. He said
they want to build a community that the area is proud of. He felt it was important to keep an open
dialogue. He said he has spoken multiple times with the staff and was surprised by the opposition they
were receiving at this meeting.

Commissioner Pugsley asked if they generally have covenants and restrictions in the neighborhoods
that Noyes builds. She also asked about price range. Vorm said yes, covenants and restrictions were
typically a requirement. He said for St. Helens the price range was hard, but he felt a fair range was
$500,000 to$600,000.

Clark said when you have a property that is this size with a large percentage of land that is not
buildable, when you look to transfer density, you are not trying to get more lots than should be on
there. You are building essentially the same community that you would build if that property was fully
developable. He said it changes the zoning a small amount, but not in some egregious way.

In Favor
No one spoke in favor.

Neutral

Brewington, John. Brewington lives at 59483 Meadowview Drive. He said he did not have specific
objections to the subdivision. He expressed concern about the proposed use of their street being the
only street to funnel all the traffic to Pittsburg Road. He also said he was concerned about the sewer
line not being able to handle the capacity of a large number of homes.

Maddox, Courtni. Maddox said her home borders the property of discussion. She said she had
concerns about the erosion of the property as they have a large retaining wall. She said that retaining

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 3 of 12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

wall and the large rocks could fall from the digging. She was excited about the proposed jogging trail,
but she wanted to be sure that their property values do not fall as a result of the development..

In Opposition

Snook, Matt. Snook lives on Meadowview Drive. He said he felt the development was all about the
money. He did not want to have low-income housing built on this property with concern about the
crime it may bring.

O’Farrell, Valerie. O'Farrell said she lives off Barr Avenue and currently lives on a shared driveway.
She was concerned about the design and how it would affect her street.

Njust, Vicky. Njust lives at 34854 Westboro Way. She expressed concern about the overlay. She said
the property could not efficiently be developed without an overlay because of significant mitigated
wetlands. She was expecting R7 zoning which would create a smaller density of homes.

Harrison, Shauna. Harrison lives at 206 N Vernonia Road. She said the surrounding lots were mostly
7,000 square feet or more. She said when the applicant presented their application for annexation, she
spoke as neutral for the R7 zoning. She said she had concern about how quickly the City was growing
and that the proposal was not right for the area.

Dawson, Abigail. Dawson said she owns a home on Mountainview Drive. She said looking at the
proposed subdivision map, she saw lots smaller than 7,000 square feet. She was concerned about
duplexes being built on these same smaller sized lots. She said smaller lots mean the houses have to
be built taller instead of wider. She said building taller houses would take away the rural feel of the
neighborhood and was not consistent with the area. She said with the overlay, it allows the developer
multiple ways to change their minds on how to develop the property that could drastically change the
nature and character of the neighborhood.

Harrison, Matt. Harrison lives at 34875 Sykes Road. He said he would like to see a nice community
built in this area. He said he felt the 7,000 square foot lots would be the best for this new development
as it seemed to fit the theme of the area.

Shober, James. Shober lives at 59543 Meadowview Drive. He said the lots should stay at 7,000
square foot or larger.

Oliver, Autumn. Oliver has family who lives on Westboro Way. She was concerned about the traffic
flow and the safety of the people who already live in the neighborhood. She said the lots should be
larger for larger homes so that people can care for their families.

Kirtland, Rhonda. Kirtland lives at 59305 Barr Avenue. She said the City’s housing needs were met
for the next 20 years. She said the highest density zoning was the closest to deficiency. She said there
was no need for high density zoning. She said the Planning Commission already recommended R7 for
the property and that the City Council agreed. She felt everyone was on board with more open space
and being careful not to impact the sensitive lands. She said with the new proposal, it was shocking to
see smaller lots.. She felt it would take away from the character of the current neighborhood.

Oliver, Heidi. Oliver lives at 34815 Westboro Way. She was concerned about the traffic flow and the
safety of the pedestrians in the neighborhood. She was also concerned about adding more subdivisions
to the City of St. Helens as she did not agree that the infrastructure or the stores could handle any
more people.

Rebuttal

Morain, Jeanne. Applicant. Morain said she understands the neighbors do not want to see
development. She said they were looking to do what was in the best interest of St. Helens and they

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 4 of 12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

have done several studies and spoken with consultants to figure out what was the best use for the
property. She said they would be able to help, through development, to bring some affordable homes
to the community. She said they will be doing connectivity through a jogging trail, that was promised
by previous developers but not followed through. She also said there were other things that were
included in the plan to meet the needs of the neighbors and the city.

Vorm, Clark. Vorm said they build very quality homes that are energy efficient. He said they sacrifice
profit margin for quality.. He said they care about what they do, and they do what they can to make
sure the neighbors and those purchasing homes are proud of what they do. Chair Cary asked if the
applicant would entertain doing the development with larger lots. He also asked if they reduced
density, would it make it unaffordable to develop? Vorm said they have considered this. He said that 46
lots would be the maximum they would build on this site. He said the current application was for 44
lots. He said they were not looking to max out the lots, but to build a nice community.

Commissioner Toschi asked if they were to only allow 7,000 square foot lots, if they would still need
the Planned Overlay to have some flexibility. Vorm answered that yes, they did based on the wetlands
and the buffers on the property, they still need the lot flexibilities that the overlay zone offers.

Sandblast, Ken. Sandblast said they were consistent with all the criteria for approval of an overlay.
He said they were not violating any federal or state statutes and the proposal was utilizing the
applicable provisions of the implementing ordinances. He said the proposal was protecting resources of
the open space. He said it was not spot zoning if it allowed flexibility to attain the density for R7. He
said the application meets all the criteria for approval of a Planned Development Overlay.

Chair Cary asked if they had considered any other designs for this development that might be less lots.
Sandblast answered that because of the way the infrastructure, streets and wetlands are located, the
design is fixed on what they can do. Sandblast said there were not a lot of alternate plans they could
design to meet all the criteria for the wetland buffers and the development already around it. He also
said there was the economic aspect of the whole thing as well. It could be more costly to try reduce
the number of lots. He said currently because of the wetlands, it is like building three mini subdivisions
with all the public infrastructure needed.

End of Oral Testimony

There were no requests to continue the hearing or leave the record open.

Close of Public Hearing & Record

The applicant waived the opportunity to submit final written argument after the close of the record.
Deliberations

Chair Cary asked about the specific flexibilities that the overlay zone allows. Graichen said it does not
change the use. He said the lot sizes could vary, but it will still only be single-family dwellings or
duplexes allowed on the lots. He said he included duplexes, because the State requires the City to treat
duplexes the same as single-family dwellings. Graichen said the lot coverage was still 40 percent. Chair
Cary asked if they would be able to come back and ask for a variance for setbacks in the future.
Graichen said the Planned Development allows the developer to play with setbacks without a variance.
However, he said the perimeter setbacks, front, and rear, could not be changed.

Commissioner Toschi asked if the shapes of the lots had to be a certain shape if they did not allow the
overlay. Graichen said there are lot dimensional standards that would need to be met without it.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 5 of 12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

There was a discussion on the density and the R7 zoning standard request from the applicant. The
Commission discussed the idea of requiring the lots to be a minimum of 7,000 square feet.

Commissioner Pugsley said there was no guarantee that Noyes was going to complete the project and
that the Commission needed to consider that the decision they were making was going to run with the
land, not based on the developer. She said the proposal looked like an R5 zoning, not R7 as the
Commission recommended at annexation. She also mentioned she would like to see the Homeowner’s
Association be utilized in this development as she saw a real benefit from them.

There was a discussion about what could happen if they did not grant the overlay. There was also
more discussion on adding a condition to approve the overlay, but keep the lot sizes at 7,000 square
feet and maintain the side yard (setback) of the R7 zone to ensure spacing between buildings
consistent with surrounding development and zoning.

There was a discussion about allowing lot size flexibility, but ultimately the Commission decided that
the applicant could apply for variances if they desired.

Motion: Upon Commissioner Toschi's motion and Commissioner Semling’s second, the Planning
Commission recommended the approval of the overlay with the condition of a 7,000 square foot minimum
lot size and that the side yard spacing follow the minimum R7 standards. [Ayes: Vice Chair Hubbard,
Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Toschi, Commissioner Low; Nays: None]

C. 7:30 p.m. Subdivision Preliminary Plat at undeveloped property southeast of
the intersection of Pittsburg Road & Meadowview Drive - Westlake Consultants

Graichen presented the staff report dated July 5, 2022. He said this application was for a 46-lot
subdivision final plat.

He said one of the conditions was there would need to be a Planned Development Overlay and if the
City Council upheld the recommendation from the Planning Commission, this layout would not work for
the Final Plat as there lots under the 7,000 square foot size.

He said with the Planned Overlay, there were some standards they could flex and some they could not.
He said the applicant is proposing four phases for development. He said there was not clarification on
which phases the wetlands would be addressed during. Wetlands and their protection zones are to be
dedicated as tracts during their respective phases.

He said another thing to note was lot 40 was connected to the extension of Willie Lane and when doing
improvements, they cannot have any temporary improvements in place so Willie Lane would have to
be moved from the fourth phase to the third phase to accommodate the lot 40.

He said in phase one, the southerly road utilizes some right-of-way that was dedicated in a previous
decision. He said it was considered a skinny street with a 40-foot right-of-way which serves a minimal
number of lots. He also said it was a cul-de-sac and that there was a limit on how long a cul-de-sac
can be and how many lots it can serve, and he said the proposed did not come close to those
maximums. He also said there was storm tract in this phase.

In phase two, Graichen talks about where the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) lines are located.
He said they are partially in Westboro Way and there would be some agreements that need to be made
with BPA. He said it would extend Westboro Way into a conventional cul-de-sac. He said there was also
a trail that was proposed to connect Westboro Way to an open space tract. He said this would go along
with the Parks and Trails Master Plan.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 6 of 12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

He said phase three will provide the connection through to Edna Barr Lane. He mentioned there was
another storm tract there. He also said with the in-fill development,t it would complete a block and
would bring it more into code compliance.

He said phase four has lots that are off Pittsburg Road which is a minor arterial street. He said the
code does not allow direct access to Pittsburg Road. He said that is why the access is from
Meadowview Drive. He said these would be double frontage lots, so there would be some additional
screening required. He also mentioned as part of creating the subdivision, they would require a
sidewalk to be built on the Pittsburg Road prior to building permitting. He said there was also a private
drive on this phase and the private road exception is used minimally in this proposal since there is only
one.

He also said there would be a Homeowners Association to maintain the tracts and wetland areas.

He said the large issue with this proposal was the sewer. He said the Wastewater Management Plan
showed some undersized infrastructure. He said there was a portion on Sykes Road and Port Avenue
that was considered critical and there were identified problems where there could be potential
surcharges. He said surcharges occur when the system backs up and overflows. He said it could come
out of manholes and could also have the potential to back up into homes. He said the solution is not
resolvable by one subdivision. He said the estimated cost to fix these problems after system
development charges are used was over $10 million dollars. He did mention this was a priority for the
City Engineering Department and they were estimating a two-to-four-year completion, but it depended
on a loan they were hoping to obtain from DEQ.

He said if the Commission looked at our standards, there was a provision that land use application
could be denied when there is a deficiency that exists, and it cannot be rectified within the
development and could result in a threat to public health and safety or cause a violation of state or
federal standards. He mentioned there could be fines to the City for surcharges from Oregon DEQ as
well.

He said a second option was to approve with conditions, but with a delay of building permit activity,
which includes taking building permits in. He said the subdivision could be approved, but you could
only put in the infrastructure (and not build homes). He said can be dangerous because they would
now have these lots created with the infrastructure in and now there is vested interest from the
developer who now is waiting on the building permits to be allowed after the sewer is upsized. He said
this could result in lots being sold in the meantime. He said with this scenario, there would need to be
a notice on each lot’s deed that expresses this delay so that there was nobody who did not receive
notice.

He said they could also approve the subdivision and take the risk. He said he was not sure how much
risk, but they could have the City Council make this decision for them as the code allows the
Commission to give a matter to the Council with a vote of the Commission.

Commissioner Low asked if there was a timeframe that was typical for the development of subdivisions
and connection to sewer for an individual house. Graichen said they did not know the timeline of the
phasing, but per the standards of the subdivision approval, it could be extended seven years before it
was no more. Graichen said typically developers can design and develop the public infrastructure in
about six months to a year, which does not include the building permitting process and actual home
construction.

Graichen said the sewer is an issue now, and when they had talked with the Council before, they were
resistant to establish an across-the-board development moratorium.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 7 of 12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

Morain, Jeanne. Applicant. Morain said the developer was working with the Engineering Department
to work together to upgrade the sewer to where some of the expense was placed on them as the
developer. She said if the Council places a moratorium, it would be for all building, not just some. She
said with their phased approach to the development, it could be a benefit to the City to continue to
allow them to move forward. She said allowing more people in a slower approach to connect to the
City sewer reduces the impact to the City. She mentioned there were some smaller lots because they
were looking to preserve some of the wildlife. She said they chose the developer they did because they
were willing to utilize larger lots and would work within the code to protect the wildlife and wetlands.
They also agreed to incorporate the walking trails and jogging trails that other developers had
promised but did not provide to the surrounding areas.

Sandblast, Ken. Sandblast is with Westlake Development. He is a representative of the applicant. He
said the subdivision criteria were all met per the code except for the Sewer situation. He said the
subdivision could be developed in phases and that was the plan they submitted, to create less impact.
He gave a small timeline as to when they would start building these different houses and subdivisions.
He said the grading would take them some time. They said to stay out of all the buffers, they would be
shuffling dirt around the site a bunch. He said the dirt will all come from the site and go back to the
site. He also mentioned that the south wetlands would be in phase one to protect them and the
northern wetlands would be in phase two to keep the least amount of impact to them. He mentioned
the shared private drive was to make the three lots that utilize it normal size. He said as Westboro Way
comes in from the west, it drops, and they have minimized the impact of that drop with grade fill.

Vorm, Clark. Vorm is with Noyes Development. He is a representative of the applicant. Vorm said that
if they implemented R7 code only, there would be a reduction in the amount of lots because of the
narrow shape of the property and the wetlands. He said they are not trying to build something with
high density. He said they proposed 46 lots because the code does not allow them to increase, only to
decrease. He said currently, the proposal was at 43 lots. He said he is trying to build a nice community
for the neighbors and the surrounding community.

In Favor
No one spoke in favor.
Neutral

Kirtland, Rhonda. Kirtland lives at 59305 Barr Avenue. She said she thought the layout was nice. She
said the only thing she was concerned about was maintaining the R7 lot size. She also was curious how
this would affect her addressing.

Furseth, Cyndi. Furseth lives off Pittsburg Road and is a part of the Meadowbrook Homeowners
Association board. She said the applicant was utilizing the Meadowbrook subdivision as the
comparison for how they would develop. She said the Meadowbrook subdivision has houses very close
together so the map that is presented by the applicant fits the same consistency. She said the sewage
should not be a major issue for all the houses around there as they are all on septic systems. She said
wetlands are expensive to maintain and it is more affordable with a Homeowner’s Association with
more lots paying fees in place.

In Opposition

Snook, Matt. Snook lives on Meadowview Drive. He said the lot sizes proposed did not fit the
neighborhood. He said they should stay consistent with the neighborhood and keep lots that are of
7,000 square feet or more. He was also concerned about the burden of the subdivision to the sewer
system. He also expressed concern about the amount of traffic and the flow of the streets.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 8 of 12




Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

Item A.

Njust, Vicky. Njust lives at 34854 Westboro Way. She expressed concern about the impact to the
sewer. She said the neighbors downstream are the ones that could have the most issue with the sewer
overflowing on their property.

Shober, James. Shober lives at 59543 Meadowview Drive. He said he thought the Commission should
deny the application because of the sewer impact. He said they should follow the code.

Harrison, Shauna. Harrison lives at 206 N Vernonia Road. She was concerned that this application
had made it this far in the approval process since there are serious sewer issues. She said development
can pay for some impact, but not the amount that is needed to completely upgrade the system. She
said she would not like to see a development started and then not finish because of the possible
recession. She also expressed concern about the lot sizes and that what was proposed did not fit the
neighborhood.

Dawson, Abigail. Dawson said she owns a home on Mountainview Drive. She was concerned about
the impact to the wetlands. She said a lot of the homes on Mountainview Drive own some of the
wetlands and she was concerned who would be maintaining them and who would be keeping the
individuals out of the space when it belongs to others. She was concerned about the safety of her
home with this new development and the value. She was also concerned about the noise level.

Rebuttal

Morain, Jeanne. Applicant. Morain said the sewage system and the mitigation expense was large
and spoke on how to reduce the cost. She said with a developer, the City does not have to incur the
whole cost of upgrading the system. She said the developer they picked was not looking to fill in a ton
of houses. They are looking to do what is safe for the area. She said they were not allowed to put
houses in on septic tank systems, that Columbia County advised them they had to annex into the City
and connect to City Sewer. She said they consulted experts on the best use of the property and have
looked at the whole picture of the property. She said they have worked on a phased approach to best
engineer and develop the property to maintain the wetlands.

Sandblast, Ken. Sandblast said he reviewed the staff report and the criteria for the subdivision and
he said the conditions imposed address all the normal criteria for a subdivision other than the sanitary
sewer. He said they did a traffic study that did not find any issues with traffic. He said they have
satisfied the applicable criteria for the application subject to the Planned Development decision.

End of Oral Testimony

There were no requests to continue the hearing or leave the record open.
Close of Public Hearing & Record

Deliberations

Commissioner Toschi asked about a timeline. Graichen said the initial preliminary plat decision is good
for 18 months. It becomes void if there is not a final plat submitted with the conditions before the
timeframe is up. He said each phase has a two-year time. There is the ability to extend the timeframe
but only two times. He said if a phase is not vested within that seven-year period they would have to
start over.

Commissioner Toschi did not think they could approve a subdivision final plat that was inconsistent
with the recommendation they made to City Council for the Planned Development overlay that is
needed to complete the subdivision application submitted. He said he thought the phasing was a great
way to develop. He said there should be a consideration of the capacity of sewer before a property is
annexed.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 9 of 12

10




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

There was a discussion about the capacity of the sewer and how it could affect the neighbors. They
also discussed how the sanitary sewer system should be paid for and fixed.

Chair Cary said the plan that was presented shows that they worked a lot of the different conditions
out to meet the criteria. He discussed the different options on how to move forward with this decision.

Motion: Upon Commissioner Toschi's motion and Commissioner Pugsley’s second, the Planning
Commission denied the Subdivision Preliminary Plat because it does not satisfy the R7 zoning requirement
and inadequacy of the sanitary sewer system. [Ayes: Vice Chair Hubbard, Commissioner Semling,
Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Toschi, Commissioner Low; Nays: None]

Motion: Upon Commissioner Pugsley’s motion and Commissioner Toschi's second, the Planning
Commission unanimously approved the Chair to sign the Findings when prepared. [Ayes: Vice Chair
Hubbard, Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Toschi, Commissioner Low;
Nays: None]

D. 8:00 p.m. Variance at 204 N 9th Street - Paranto

Associate Planner Dimsho presented the staff report dated July 5, 2022. She shared where the property
was located and discussed that the variance was for a fence height. She said the topography of the
property is a mid-tier and the further up 9th Street, the tier goes higher.

She said the wall was between a neighboring property and the subject property. She said in 2018, the
wall was six feet in height. She said two years later, the wall had increased to over the six-foot height
restriction (eight feet and ten feet in one area). She said the applicant purchased the property and
thought the wall was legal, so he is now requesting a variance to bring the wall into compliance.

She said the maximum height for walls/fences is six feet. She gave a report from an engineer that
discussed the stability of the wall. She said the report said at eight-feet, the wallwas stable, but there
was one portion of the wall that stood ten-foot, so she was recommending adding a condition of
approval to the staff report to reduce the small ten-foot section down to eight feet.

She said the variance was not detrimental to the surrounding areas and this was making the property
developable. She mentioned another condition of approval in the report was to allow a six-foot fence to
be built on top of the wall for safety purposes.

Paranto, Steve. Applicant. Paranto said he purchased the property after falling in love with the
town. He said the property will look better with the privacy fence along with creating a safer
environment for the area. He said he thought the neighbor would want the separation between his
property and his. He said he did not have an issue with bringing the wall into engineering compliance
by removing the unsafe 10-foot portion.

In Favor

Scholl, Rick. Scholl said he owns property up from the applicant. He said he thought the Commission
should approve the Variance for the wall.

Neutral

No one spoke in Neutral.

In Opposition

No one spoke in Opposition.
Rebuttal

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 10 of 12 1




Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

Item A.

There was no applicant rebuttal

End of Oral Testimony

There were no requests to continue the hearing or leave the record open.

Close of Public Hearing & Record

Deliberations

;I]'here was a small discussion about the neighbor and the feedback he provided at a different public
earing.

Motion: Upon Commissioner Toschi's motion and Semling’s second, the Planning Commission
unanimously approved the Variance as recommended and amended.. [Ayes: Vice Chair Hubbard,
Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Toschi, Commissioner Low; Nays: None]

Motion: Upon Commissioner Semling’s motion and Toschi’s second, the Planning Commission
unanimously approved the Chair to sign the Findings when prepared. [Ayes: Vice Chair Hubbard,
Commissioner Semling, Commissioner Pugsley, Commissioner Toschi, Commissioner Low; Nays: None]

DISCUSSION ITEMS
E. Chair Signature for Columbia Commons Subdivision Final Plat

Graichen shared that the Columbia Commons Subdivision, the four-lot commercial subdivision that the
Commission had previously looked at, was nearly done. To finalize their final plat, the Chair would need
to sign the documents.

F. ACSP Update

Graichen mentioned that ACSP was the marijuana industrial agricultural operation on what was
previously the City’s property, but was sold to them. He said that the discussion about some of the
non-compliance issues led to an invitation to them to attend the Planning Commission at the last
meeting. He said since that conversation, there had been a revised application and a discussion with
them about corrections. He said there is a shed over a public easement and there will be some
movement on getting this corrected. He said they took some steps in the right direction in the
permitting process.

G. Conex 8-Plex Ground Lease

Graichen said this is a follow up to the Commission’s request for information at the last meeting. The
lease mentioned the public benefit is an $8,160.00 fee per year for the property, $85.00 per unit per
month after a year period, and they also receive six public parking spaces as part of the lot for 6%
Street Park. There was a small discussion about the affordability of the condos.

PLANNING DIRECTOR DECISIONS (previously e-mailed to the Commission)
H. Site Design Review at S. 1st Street and Strand - City of St. Helens
Site Design Review at 115 Little Street and 373 Columbia River Hwy - Weigandt
Subdivision Final Plat at Howard Street - St. Helens II, LLC
Temporary Use Permit at 2295 Gable Road - TNT Fireworks
Sign Permit at 2625 Gable Road - St. Helens Parks & Recreation
Sign Permit at 1570 Columbia Blvd - Epperly

el S

N. Temporary Sign Permit at 2100 Block of Columbia Blvd - Heather Epperly Agency, Inc.
Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 11 of 12

12




Item A.

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes July 12, 2022

0. Conditional Use Permit (Minor) at 35031 Millard Road - Happy Hollow Construction
P. Temporary Sign Permit at 2100 Block of Columbia Blvd - Columbia County Fair
There were no comments on the Planning Director Decisions.
PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT
Q. Planning Department Activity Report — June
There was no discussion on the Activity Report.
PROACTIVE ITEMS
There were no Proactive Items discussed.
FOR YOUR INFORMATION ITEMS

Commissioner Pugsley asked if there was a way to limit the time for public hearing testimony. Graichen
said they would need to have a formal process put into place.

Commissioner Toschi also said they should recommend to the City Council that the sanitary sewer
system be fixed sooner than what is proposed, as he sees it as a serious safety risk.

Dimsho reminded all the Commissioners about the upcoming Planning Commissioner training. She said
there would be more training in the future for those who could not make it.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Planning Commission, the meeting was adjourned 12:53
a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Christina Sullivan
Community Development Administrative Assistant

Planning Commission DRAFT Minutes —07/12/22 Page 12 of 12 13




Item B.

TO: Planning Commission acting as the Historic Landmarks Commission
FROM: Jennifer Dimsho, AICP, Associate Planner
RE: 230 Strand Street (Courthouse Annex)

DATE: July 27, 2022

The City received a request from Emetick Architects, on behalf of Columbia County, for a few
minor exterior alterations to the Courthouse Annex building located at 230 Strand Street. The
exterior alterations include:

1. Replacement of the existing entry door with an automated sliding doot system to improve
access

2. Replacement of an existing floor-to-ceiling window which is cuttently covered with a
security grate with a new exterior door to provide access to the mail receiving room

3. Installation of a ground-mounted mail/patcel box doe USPS deliveries outside of the new
proposed mail receiving entry.

All improvements are on the east side (Columbia River side) of the building. These items are part of
a larger interior remodel of the Courthouse Annex building.

Per SHMC 17.32.070(7), permanent exterior architectural changes to buildings (that are not official
recognized historic resources) shall comply with the Riverfront District Architectural Guidelines.
The Historic Landmarks Commission shall make a recommendation to the approval authority as to
whether the Commission believes the proposal complies. Please review your copy of the guidelines
when looking at this proposal and be prepated to discuss. The guidelines can also be found on the
City website on the City’s website:

https://www.sthelensoregon.gov/planning/page/riverfront-district-architectural-design-guidelines

Generally, the east side of the Courthouse Annex is much less visible and sensitive than the original
courthouse where there is greater visual sensitivity. The annex is not compatible with the bulk of the
buildings in the Riverfront District and considered a non-contributing structure to the historic
district. That said, the few relevant sections of the guidelines to consider include building
fagade/entry, material & building colots, and windows.

Although the main entry door will be replaced because of its poot condition, the original entry
(location, layout, and appearance) will remain the same. Access will also improve because of its
automation.

Materials should be replaced with similar material types to maintain the original appearance of the
structure. The proposed door finishes and bronze USPS patcel box are specified to closely match
existing building materials and colot.

Although an existing original window will be replaced with a doot, it is not a2 majot contributor to
the character of the building given its current condition is covered by a metal mesh security screen,

1of2

14




Item B.

its less visible east side location, and its relation to the other windows on the building. The size of
the existing window is also generally the same size as the door which will replace it.

It is staff’s opinion that this proposal is consistent with the guidelines where applicable, but we are
open to any other feedback or recommended conditions that we may place on the anticipated
building permit submittal. Application matetials which include a photo of the proposed work area, a
site plan, a building plan, building elevations, specifications, and the applicant’s narrative addressing
the guidelines are attached.

20f2

15




AR =22 e e

T0ST-£6€-€08
UDJ9H 1S ‘BanuaAy od Sb

“. VOO1X08 130Vd/1IVIN MIN




Item B.

17

22.07.19

SITE PLAN

ULy Z1

ANNEX ZONING CONFIRMATION

s | || ([

SITE PLAN GENERAL NOTES

'NOTES ARE INCLUDED ON CIVIL DRAWINGS, (C SERIES) AND
LANDS CAPE DRAWINGS (L SERIES)
FIELD VERIFY BSTING CONDIMONS.

C. SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES COORDINATION WITH SUSTAINABLE
€

D.  SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES COORDINATION WITH UTILITES, AS
REQUIRED.

-
-
2
z
§

]
s
¢
g
H
£
E]

. SEE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT: INFORMATION ON SHEET GO.1

Gc.
OWNER.

— SITE PLAN LEGEND

IIIIIII ITEM ABOVE (IE. CORNICE. OVERHEAD ITEMS)

—_—— - — PROPERTY LINE

® KEYNOTES - SITE PLAN

Ll

1 SCALE: 1/16"=10"

SCHEMATIC PRICING SET

3
g ¢
¢k
¢3¢
53
§5¢
2 2 3
1
£2s
g 3
g
CONSULTANT
LOGO
SPACE
REVIEW SET
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

REV.#: DATE_DBCHPION

230 STRAND STREET
ST. HELENS, OR 97051

CC COURTHOUSE
ANNEX RENOVATION

SITE PLAN




Item B.

18

FLOOR PLAN GENERAL NOTES

A DESIGN/BUILD AND DEFERRED SUBMITTAL ITEMS ARE DN GO.1
FINISH FLOOR PLANS ARE IN THE A9 SERIES.

B. DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE FINISH FACE UN.O.

c AND WIND( TO A WALL AND NOT
ALLOW. CASETRIM PLUS 1°

. TRAVEL SURFACES SHALL BE STABLE AND FIRM AND SLIP RESISTANT, FLOOR
SURFACES SHALL COMPLY WITH ANSY A1171.1 SECTIONS 301 T0 303.

£ FURNITURE AND APPLIANCES SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY, AND NOT IN SCOPE

F.DOORS 5 0

RESTROOMS. CONFERENCE ROOMS, AND SUITE ENTRANCE DOORS.

G. WALLS TO BE INSULATED 3-5/8 METAL STUDS WITH (1) LAYER GYPSUM BOARD ON
EACH FACE. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWSE

H. PROVIDE BACKING IN WALLS TO SUPP ORT CASEWORK. DEVICES, ETC. AS

SHEET LEGEND

........ ouectasove ——
"
] 'l_ A 1 HOUR FIRE PARTIION
T (BTOREMAIN [G] ]
= BB o
B revws | —— Sworesasmen
@ H—
O @eowws s -
o A4 DOWNSPOUT

22.07.19
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

B ewcowms os.

q
l NoTscore of ok
AN

KEYNOTES - FLOOR PLAN ®

1 USFS-AFFROVED PAKCEL LOCKEK, BASIS OF DESIGN. MODEL 3304
BY SALSBURY INDUSTRIES. WHITE FINH

2 DXITRIOR DOOR, KEF ALTERNATE 01 ON GO.0 FOR DESCRIPION
3 HOLLOW METAL FRANE SYSTEM. FULLLITE HOLLOW METAL DOOR.
TEMPERED GLATING

‘ TRAMED PARTIAL4EIGHT IRSULATED WALL AT SPANDREL 10 (£]
s

7

8

MULLION, SOLID WOOD SILL AT WINDOW.
FLASIIC LAMINATE CASEWORK AND WORK SUKF ACE

<vaxinn>

14 INTERIOR WINDOW PANE: REF ALTERNATE 03 ON GO.OTOR
DESCRPTION

15 PROVIDE £ CLEAR-COATED WOOD TKIM AROLND RECEPTION
COUNIER: PROVIDE CLEAR-COATED VENEER PANELLING WIDI 4
STILES AND RAILS BELOW COUNTER SURFACE

18 PLEXSECURITY PANEL REF ALTERNATE 04 FOR DESCRIPTION

17 FLUSH WOOD DOOR 10 OTHERWSE MATCH ONERS IN PROJECT
sCOPE

18 SURFACE-MOUNIED BABY CHANGING STATION

._ SCALE: 1/4"=10"

SCHEMATIC PRICING SET

3
. &
E
$ 89
fsd
33
E 3
m ° g
-
g
‘CONSULTANT
LoGO
SPACE
REVIEW SET
NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

REV.#: DATE_DESCKIPTION

CC COURTHOUSE
ANNEX RENOVATION
230 STRAND STREET
ST. HELENS, OR 97051

RCHITECTURAL

FLOOR PLAN -

A

DATE_owisz

A2.1




Item B.

19

ANNEX ZONING CONFIRMATION
22.07.19

EXIBTING
ELEVATION

DEMOLITION GENERAL NOTES

PERFORM
WHETHER NOTED O THS OR OTHER PLANS.

SAFE CONDUCT OF THE WORK, CAREFUL REMOVAL AND DISPOSITION
OF MATERIALS. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY WHICH IS TO REMAIN
UNDISTURBED AND COORDINATE WITH OTHER WORK. IN PROGRESS.

c

_o
PROPERTY AND NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES AS A RESULT OF THIS WORK.
INCLUDH To ary

D.  FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO DEMOUTION. NOTIFY
ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR IF ACTUAL

NO
ADDITIONAL COSTS WILL BE ACCEPTED FOR EXPOSED CONDITIONS
THAT HAVE HOT BEEN AELD VERIFIED PRIOR TO BIDDING.

E. SALVAGE L STOCKPILE ANY L ALL REUSABLE [TEMS CALLED OUT 10 BE
DEMOLISHED. COORDINATE SELECTION OF REUSABLE TEMS W/
OWNER.

rzoz.;?»omﬁmz»ﬁx»snl»mu“x:.a.mumxnxaxmuon
REMOVED ARE UnLES
OTHERWISE.

G.  THE BXISTING BUILDING I5 REPORTED TO HAVE HAIARDOUS MATERIALS.
COORDINATE WITH OWNER FOR SCOPE OF WORK. COORDINATE WITH
‘CITY AND STATE REQUIREMENTS FOR REQUIRED ABATEMENT.

H. RETAIN AS MUCH ORIGINAL EXTERIOR MATERIAL AND DETAIL AS
POSSIBLE.

1 . PATCH AND
WORK TO MATCH EXISTING ADJACENT CONDITIONS.

DEMOLITION LEGEND

—— ITEMTO REMAIN

||||||| TTEM TO BE REMOVED

AREA OF [E] WALL OR OPENING TO BE REMOVED

PORTLAND OR 97204

321 SOUTHWEST FOURTH AVE SUITE 200

P 5032359400 W EMERICE-ARCHITECTS.COM

CONSULTANT
LoGo

SPACE

REVIEW SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

REV_#: DATE._DBSCKIPTION,

@ KEYNOTES - DEMO ELEVATIONS

1 DEMO DOOR AND TRANE. PREP OPENING FOR NEW WORK.

2 DEMOWRIDOWAND GRATE FRLF OPENING 108 WK
W z
2

O 58

I 2 g8

=0 2x

x > 29

2w g2

Ox 53

QT

O &
Oz
- . - - o TOPOFPENTHOUSE gy Oz
T L <

PR _ - _ _ _ [ _ _IOP OF ROOF @ |
41'- 6"

41

EXISTING COURTHOUSE

I~

DEMO ELEVATIONS

PROJECTNO: 2141
DRWNBY. BH[CHEDBY: 8H
DATE_oaisz

@@%z:m East Elevation
SCALE: 1/8"=1'"0"

Al1.3

SCHEMATIC PRICING SET




20

Item B.

ANNEX ZONING CONFIRMATION ELEVATION NOTES
22.07.19

A WINDOW. DOOR AND OTHER PENETRATIONS TO THE EXTERIOR TO RECEIVE
COLD APPUED SELF ADHERING MEMBRANE FLASHING IF THERE IS A NAIL FLANGE.

8. VINDOW AND DOOR FINISHED OPENING HEIGHTS SHOWN ON SCHEDULES.

321 SOUTHWEST FOURTH AVE SUTTE 200

© KEYNOTES - ELEVATION

RTLAND OR 9720.
P 5002359400 W EMERICI-ARCHITECTS.COM

=
o w
:
v I
3
3w .
P M. PROVIE
LECTKONIC A
—
O Qw ﬁ O CONSULTANT
- LoGo

ELCUATION

REVIEW SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

REV_#: DATE_DESCHIFTION

230 STRAND STREET
ST. HELENS, OR 97051

||l|l||'||l||l||l|||l||.l||||’|||II|.|||||l|,||,||||l|l o e = - an’vaIn_mZHxOCmme
46’ -11"
e e e . e e e e e e — e e R e e e Svommoom%
41-6"
B 5 SN T % fe T % o t Jo T I T T s " ; =171
i ] 5 I3 | i i { ! $ Al VS H
ae SV | l st ] | o SSis I AR AR 1 BN S5 i } Tt ! ! ]

CC COURTHOUSE
ANNEX RENOVATION

T 1 0T 1 " - -—-"—+—-—-—de— L ¥ 1 i | _: ¥ 1 4 1 __ 1|

|
oL ) _ _rHroriooR
|| 26'-0"

EXISTING COURTHOUSE

| m M " e

i { | i
i H i |
SN e SR, (I S NI N N L T S i l||||L|[|1||L||[!|¢||.i|l _ f_ |mmnozo|m_.oone

FIRST FLOOR e
o-0

NEW DOOR TO
MATCH ADJACENT
FLUSH DOOR

ELEVATIONS

NEW MAILPARCEL BOX TO

" AND WINDOW FINISH, SEE
1 Proposed East Elevation ATTACHED CUT SHEET

SCALE: 1/8"= 10"

SCHEMATIC PRICING SET




Item B.

21

ASSA ABLOY

ASSA ABLOY Entrance Systems
1900 Alrport Road

Monroe, NC 28110

Phone! 1-866-237-2687
specdesk.na.besam@assaabloy.com

BESAM SL500

SURFACE APPLIED ACTIVE LEAVES ONLY
NARROW STILE BI-PART SLIDING DOOR SYSTEM

NOTE:! THE STANDARD PACKAGE CONSISTS OF:
THE AUTOMATIC OPERATOR & WEATHERSTRIP. FRAMES.
VERTICAL WEATHERSTRIP, EMERGENCY BREAKAWAY
& 2-POINT LOCK. DPTIONAL POSITION SWITCHES (DIGITAL (3 OR 5) OR

DOORS WITH

>Z Z mx N OZ _ Z O O OZ _H_—N—/\_ >|_|_ OZ KEY (5)», (OFF-EXIT ONLY-AUTO-REDUCED OPENING-HOLD OPEN OR OFF,
. AUTO, HOLD OPEN), MOTION/PRESENCE SENSORS, 6° JAMBS.
4 fpae MOTION/PRESENCE 4 1727 | STANDARD FINISH: CLEAR- AA-MI2C22A41, CLASS 1, .018 MM,
22.07.19 Caias W mmzmn_mmu_ 114.3> SECTION DARK BRONZE- AA-MI2C22A44, CLASS 1, 018 MM
L ' I=F g @ SPECIAL FINISHES ARE AVAILABLE.
/| ‘ (@s. ’
COVER SIDE _mwmpx_u_cH mﬁ_ SECTION u THIS PACKAGE WILL ACCEPT UP TO 1 (25.4) INSULATED GLASS.
7t @ d HEADER
(177.8> O |l¥SURFACE/] NOTE DRAWING IS DIMENSIONED IN BOTH ENGLISH AND METRIC
MOUNTED/] REF. AS FOLLOWS 1 (254 ALL METRIC SIZES ARE MILLIMETERS.
| — * ELECTRICAL SERVICE Q mnmmw_.. ﬂﬂﬁmﬁz m,_c%m»mﬂa hmp(iv%xn cﬂﬂm_m.ﬁnmmzmmm nmmucnq
1 , LLA T NS, HE
| wmwmwx%n.mwom\_mmnINo.Dz._.m _ S LABEL ON THE EQUIPMENT.
| | \ ' 4 REFER TO RELEVANT (LOCAL, STATE, NATIONAL OR AHJ) BUILDING
TO JUNCTION BOX. = 4 CODE FOR MIN DOOR HEIGHT & MIN/MAX WIDTH ALLOWABLE
|
| = — ﬁ FOR EGRESS REQUIREMENT IN CONJUNCTION WITH TABLE BELOW.
“ BE [ Lo | o | R | G | T
NI| FR u] AME
ol = E viDTH LEeF, YIDTH HEIGHT | HEIGHT WIDTH
T A B
OPTIONAL MUNTIN % mwm_,w umow.\mm m.m_w_&m m%mm.\mw. Amw_p_._t Am_wm..: Amww.m_s
72" g g g . .
STD HT 84 (1828.8) unw%._umv mmiwﬁv nm%__—.s A%me Grm%m.mv
. A 84° 5/8° 76 3/4° g 5 .
‘ 82 1/8 (2133.6 Am_%u_mv ﬁ_um_mv %fo\_mv Amm___..s Amﬂa Eww,\m.mv
OFH (2086> 567 50_5/8" 88 3/4° 91” 84° 201
o e | e Ll il o
e e = G moawu Cr2y+66.7> | C-(184:2) |ROH+(177.8) | OFH-(177.8) | 2c5aap.6)*
OFW NOTE: CONSULT FACTORY FOR EXTENDED HEADERS.
MOUNTED @ 41 1/2° @311.4> SECTION
_— WIDTH T
4172 S _
4 (1054.1> HEIGHT FD-thoats.
% FEL NON REMOVABLE * NARROW STILE RAILS w/ 1/4° GUTTER, NO MUTTINS BASED ON MASONRY OPENING
! e SECURITY TYPE
| GLAZING BEAD q SECTION HOW TO FIND THE MASONRY OPENING -C*
BREAKOUT SIDE| EXTERIOR ELEVATION SYSTEM (TYP.) 5y oo
[BReAnUT soe] o STaNDARD. ey 2y - 5
4 c il
Optional Factory Prep|[cpoveR SIDE ) SILL f—
3 € Switch Location @ SURFACE WASIRY PODG s WAL
[ 74-1/2"H BREAKOUT SIDE 7 MOUNTED B e I {L.
(STANDARD) - c >
Nl
FFL. v INTERIOR
63 I T&l‘r‘ ]
. D L 4 12°
PIVOT 143>~ ] Il /\ I
POINT \| | — EXTERIDR |1 O |
i i : 4 172 b~ ~ &
= %_m@‘ _mm*_mm_ | e TrATE i RECESS LENGTH SECTION VIEW FROM BREAKOUT SIDE
1 | % FROM EDGE OF @ WG 1505871
. ROUGH OPENING RN BY BT 11/0/12  |o% Dgg  |DATEq) V4 0] DATEg 6
i . 1 W\A KEY €/2ed 17T GUIDETRACK cLV [P i1/9/12 | [P*1u/14/712] | /22/1
44.5> (C/2>+(108) RECESSED
CLEAR DOOR OPENING (OPTIONAL)
F.F.L.
B FlL,
SECTION TRACK LEVELED IN I
@ 1/47¢6.4> GROUTING. Awpmap.vll_ﬂ
COVER SIDE BREAKOUT SIDE S/16* 2 1/4° g >m—l0<
O [eoves sie]  [seencaur sine ASSA




22.07.19 STANDARD FEATURES FOR CBU'S

compartments A P T mail collection prevent tampering

(|
. 4 g [ |
i = l
Individually o 5 e ! Convenient mail LR | Anti-fish plate on
numbered mail Sl [ slot for outgoing | ‘1 rear of mail slot to

.

SIAXOdTIVIN TYIOHIININOD

= a '
L = ~ K \\ ' ‘ J
s
Fully integrated Access door for Matching Heavy duty cam
parcel locker(s) U.S.P.S. provided " pedestal locks for added
master arrow lock or (included) security

master commercial lock

”
-

Front views of #3316 in sandstone finish displayed 0
=

)

STANDARD FEATURES FOR o
ol

p

[

Large compart =

for parcels =

=

w

@)

Individually é
numbered parcel w
compartments o

o

O

@

Doors equipped
with a two (2) key
security system
that allows tenants
a convenient way to

Parcel doors feature
adouble latch
locking system to

Access door for

receive packages U.S.P.S. provided provide maximum )

on site master arrow lock or . security E
: Matching

master commercial lock TE:

pedestal -

(included) N[

®

2=

m

Front views of OPL's in green finish displaye 5

O

AVAILABLE COLORS 2

0

Y E— :

sandstone white green black gray

See specifications & options on page 15

i hoxes com Phone 1.800.MAILBOX

Prop

1-800-MAILBOX




EMERICK ARCHITECTS

RIVERFRONT GUIDELINES NARRATIVE RESPONSE
COLUMBIA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX TI #2141

St. Helens Planning Department

Attn: Jenny Dimsho

Associate Planner/Community Development Project Manager
jdimsho@sthelensoregon.gov

RE: Courthouse Annex Tl Renovation Exterior Scope

July 26, 2022

Dear Jenny,

Thank you for your guidance on the review process for the proposed renovation of the ground
floor of the Courthouse annex for Columbia County. Per our discussion, We understand that
the proposed exterior scope of this project is subject to review by the Historic Landmarks
Commission for compliance with the Architectural Guidelines of the Riverfront District. To
support this process, below is a brief narrative response to applicable criteria within these
Guidelines.

Please feel free to reach out with any thoughts or questions. We look forward to continuing to
work with St. Helens on this project

Thank you,

/jngw/% -

Brendan Hart, RA

1. Awnings & Canopies
No awnings or canopies proposed

2. Building Fagade/Entry
2.2 General Guidance: “Maintain traditional fagade elements on existing structures and

encourage their use on new buildings”

2.3 Existing Buildings: “Preservation or restoration of original building facades and

entryways is necessary to maintain the unique qualities and characteristics of Olde

Towne, and to strengthen the integrity of the district”
Response: The proposed entry door replacement will closely match the existing
condition while remediating a failing condition providing greater accessibility to
public departments inside the building. The proposed new door will replace an
existing idiosyncratic window, currently fitted with a metal mesh security screen,
with an architecturally compatible new door. These alterations meet the intent
of the Guidelines by preserving the original building’s entry sequence, specifying
materials and finishes similar to the existing, and improving means of access and
use of the building.

3. Building Lighting
No building lighting proposed

321 SOUTHWEST FOURTH AVENUE #200 PORTLAND OREGON 97204 503 235 9400

armerick-architecis.com

Item B.

23




EMERICK ARCHITECTS

4. Building Signage
No building signage proposed

5. Maintenance
5.2 General Guidance: "Prior to beginning an alteration or addition project, evaluate
what cleaning or alteration may be necessary to existing materials; ongoing
maintenance of all exterior components should promote the visual appearance of the
district.”
Response: The existing entry doors proposed for replacement have been
evaluated and found to not provide reliable security or thoughtful means of
accessibility, and are considered in need of replacement. The proposed
replacement is compatible with the existing condition.

6. Materials and Building Colors
6.2 General Guidance: Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction
techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize the historic district should be
preserved
6.3 Existing Buildings: "During rehabilitation of buildings, replace materials with similar
material types to maintain original appearance of the structure.”
Response: The proposed doors and exterior mail/parcel box are specified to
closely match existing materials, detailing, and colors. This meets the intent of
the Guidelines to maintain visual continuity across the fagade.

7. Roof
No roof alterations proposed

8. Setback, Orientation, and Bulk
No setback, orientation, or bulk alterations proposed

9. Windows

8.3 Existing Buildings: “Original windows are to be maintained; original windows which

are covered should be uncovered”
Response: The window proposed to be replaced is a minor idiosyncratic condition
that occurs in just one location and is not a major contributor to the building's
character. This condition also occurs on the less public parking-lot (east) side of
the building. The proposed replacement of this window with an architecturally
compatible door, providing access isolated from other building functions and
occupants, is a necessary alteration to improve the level of safety for mail
delivery at the building. The proposed alteration meets the intent of the
Guidelines by maintaining the existing wall/window ratio, and remaining
compatible with the original composition and finishes of the building.

321 SOUTHWEST FOURTH AVENUE #200 PORTLAND OREGON 97204 503 235 39400

emerick-architecis com

Item B.

24




TYPICAL ORDER OF ACTIONS FOR A MATTER THAT REQUIRES A PUBLIC HEARING

. The Mayor (for the Council) or Planning Commission Chairperson opens the public hearing. This
cannot occur before the advertised, noticed and published day and time of the hearing.

. The type of hearing is described as well as the subject or purpose of the hearing, the location (if
applicable) and the applicant.

Preliminary matters are discussed. This includes:

e The review body (Planning Commission or City Council) may be asked if they wish to declare an ex-
parte contact, conflict of interest or bias regarding the issue. If any of these are declared, it is
dealt with by the review body. This could result is a decision maker not being able to participate.
Sometimes only bias and conflict of interest applies.

e The audience is asked if they object to the ability of someone to make a fair decision. If someone
objects, it is dealt with by the review body and can result is a decision maker not being able to
participate.

Required statements are read. This includes:

e The applicable substantive criteria that applies to the issue.
e Instruction about basis for any testimony, arguments and evidence provided by those in attendance.
e That failure to raise an issue appropriately precludes appeal to a higher court based on that issue.

. At this point the official public hearing begins. The typical order for the public hearing is:

(1) City staff’s presentation > (2) applicant’s presentation > (3) testimony in support > (4)
neutral testimony - (5) testimony in opposition - (6) rebuttal by the applicant

After this there are many things that can happen. But the key thing to remember is that once the public
record is closed, no more evidence is supposed to be added. This includes testimony from those in
attendance. Sometimes the public hearing can be continued to another time, but it usually ends at this
point.

Normally, the public record is closed now. However, if it is a quasi-judicial hearing, a participant can
request that the record be left open for additional evidence—oRrs 197.763(6)(a). Also, the applicant has an
opportunity to submit a final written argument—ors 197.763(6)(e). If these happen, deliberations will be
delayed to a different day.

Now the decision body can deliberate. The decision body reviews the evidence in the record and comes
to a conclusion. This usually ends with a motion by one of the decision makers and if the motion has
adequate votes amongst the decision body, it passes. At this point the decision is made. Sometimes, this
is only a recommendation from the Planning Commission to the City Council.

. The decision will be put in writing and notice sent out to those who have a legal right for the notice. This
usually includes all those who provided testimony. The notice will include appeal information. If the
matter is not appealed, the decision becomes final.

Revised Nov. 2, 2018

Item C.

25




Item C.

CONDUCT OF HEARING

e The Planning Commission or City Council, in conducting a hearing which will result in a determination as to
the permissible use of a specific property, are acting in an administrative, quasi-judicial capacity, and all
hearings are conducted accordingly. Interested parties are therefore entitled to an opportunity to be
heard, to present evidence, to have the proceedings recorded, and to have a decision based on the
evidence in the record. If the hearing is legislative (for adoption of law for example), there is
opportunity to be heard similar to quasi-judicial proceedings.

o Testimony from those who are not the applicant shall be limited to 5 minutes per person. ( Formatted: Highlight )
[ Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No bullets or numbering ]

e No person shall be disorderly, abusive or disruptive of the orderly conduct of the hearing.

e No person shall testify without first receiving recognition from the presiding officer and stating their full
name for the record. Permission is also required to speak more than once.

e No person shall present irrelevant or repetitious testimony or evidence.

e There shall be no audience demonstrations, such as applause, cheering, displays or signs or other conduct
disruptive of the hearing. Such conduct may be cause for immediate termination of the hearing.

e Planning Commission or City Council members may question or cross-examine any person who testifies.
CHALLENGE FOR PREJUDGMENT, PERSONAL INTEREST, OR BIAS

Anyone attending a public hearing before the Planning Commission or City Council may challenge the
qualifications of any of its members to participate in the hearing and decision. This helps ensure the decision
making body is impartial. For quasi-judicial hearings this challenge can be based on ex-parte
communication, conflict of interest, or personal bias. For legislative hearings only conflict of interest
and bias applies. Upon a challenge, the Planning Commission or Council may have to address the issue by
motion after discussion of the accusation.

e Ex-parte contact includes contact outside of the public hearing process. This includes but is not limited
to communication, site visits, and research. Decision makers are required to state any ex-parte contact so
those in attendance can evaluate if it results in any impartiality.

Note that communication between City staff and a decision maker is not considered ex-parte contact.

e Conflict of interest includes unfair circumstances of decision makers such as being a relative of the
applicant or having a financial interest in the outcome of the proposal.

e Bias is unfair prejudice.

APPEALS AND PROCEDURES
Decisions of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the City Council by an affected person. Decisions of
the City Council may be appealed to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA). Notice of appeal rights is
sent to applicable parties after a decision is made. Appeal timelines and requirements are indicated on the
notice.

QUESTIONS

If you have questions please contact the City Planning Department. Planning staff is usually at the front lines
of these proceedings and can help with the technical aspects.

Revised Nov. 2, 2018

26




CITY OF ST. HELENS PLANNING DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT

Item F.

To:  City Council Date: 07.26.22
From: Jacob A. Graichen, AICP, City Planner
cc: Planning Commission

This report does not indicate all current planning activities over the past report period. These are tasks, processing and administration of the Development Code
which are a weekly if not daily responsibility. The Planning Commission agenda, available on the City’s website, is a good indicator of current planning
activities. The number of building permits issued is another good indicator as many require Development Code review prior to Building Official review.

ASSOCIATE PLANNER/PROJECT MANAGER—/n addition to routine tasks, the Associate
Planner/Community Development Project Manager has been working on: See attached.

PLANNING ADMINISTRATION—PREAPPLICATIONS MEETINGS

Conducted a pre-application meeting for the potential public safety facility (police station, etc.)
at Kaster Road/Old Portland Road.

PLANNING ADMINISTRATION—MISC.

Gave permission to remove a tree in a protected wetland for property along Alderwood Drive.
Leaning growth and rotting base.

Public improvement (civil) plans submitted to the Engineering Dept. for review. Planning
provides comments too for consistency with the conditions of approval.

Gave permission to remove two medium size trees based on the imminent threat provisions of
the Development Code within protected wetlands by Alderwood Court. This subdivision was
before the wetland rules and if done today, this would include a 75’ upland protection buffer.
But such rules did not exist when the subdivision was created, putting improved yards and
buildings in close proximity to the protected wetlands.

DEVELOPMENT CODE ENFORCEMENT

Started communication with the St. Helens Community Bible Church on Millard Road about an
RV being lived in on the premises. Church is cooperating to abate the issue in a reasonable
timeframe.

PLANNING COMMISSION (& acting HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION)

July 12, 2022 meeting (outcome): The commission held three public hearings: Planned
Developed (overlay zone) and Subdivision for the Comstock property, and a wall/fence height
Variance. The Planned Development was recommended to the Council with a restricted
approval, the Subdivision was denied and the wall/fence Variance was approved. Meeting was
7pm to just before lam!

27




August 9, 2022 meeting (upcoming): At a minimum, the Commission will discuss the
order/conduct of public hearings (i.e., incorporating a testimony time limit) and Oregon’s
measure 109 related to Psilocybin.

As the Historic Landmarks Commission, they will consider proposed changes to the non-historic
portion of the county’s courthouse annex at 230 Strand.

COUNCIL ACTIONS RELATED TO LAND USE

The Council upheld the Planning Commission recommendations for the Comstock property
Planned Development Overlay Zone.

The Council authorized the Mayor’s signature for the Columbia Commons Subdivision
(commercial not residential) final plat.

The Council discussed 2020 Oregon Measure 109 legalizing psilocybin (magic mushrooms) for
limited non-recreational use. As allowed by the measure, the Council will put a two-year
moratorium on implementation of this for our community as a referendum in the upcoming
General Election, to allow time to see how things play out elsewhere in the state, to better gauge
and have proper time to determine what time, place and manner rules are appropriate for St.
Helens within the limitations of the measure.

I passed Measure 109 information and the city’s intent on to the County’s Planning Manager,
since land use in the UBG but outside city limits has a county component but can still impact our
citizens. The County’s Boar of Commissioners is anticipated to talk about this at their July 27
meeting.

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS)
Reviewed the new GIS data and aerial photos, and 5’ x 5 printed enlargement for the Council
Chambers. Much to look at and a some back and forth with the folks preparing the final

products. We got the final deliverables and sent the final payment.

A 5’ x 5” photo enlargement has been installed in the Council Chambers and the 2" floor city
hall conference room (i.e., the St. Helens room).

The remaining part of the data update project is internal organization. Hope to get caught up on
normal planning duties before this final step.

Item F.

28




From: Jennifer Dimsho

To: Jacob Graichen

Subject: July Planning Department Report
Date: Monday, July 25, 2022 11:33:39 AM

Item F.

Here are my additions to the July Planning Department Report.
GRANTS

1. CDBG- Columbia Pacific Food Bank Project — Contract completion deadline was 6/30.
JHK submitted final invoicing. Working with COLPAC to process final report paperwork for
CDBG. Final disbursement request from state is anticipated in late July. Final Occupancy is
pending work items in progress. Held 7/20 Public Hearing and adopted Resolution for
project closeout.

2. Safe Routes to School - Columbia Blvd. Sidewalk Project — Held meeting with County on
7/7 to discuss separation of the culvert project (County) with the sidewalks project. 90%
design anticipated soon. Submitted quarterly Report on 6/1. Bidding is anticipated late
Fall 2022 with construction in Spring/Summer 2023. Amendment approved to push
completion deadline from November 2022 to February 2024.

3. Business Oregon — Infrastructure Finance Authority — Contract documents finalized. Will
submit first reimbursement once design work is complete for Riverwalk project.

4. Technical Assistance Grant with the Oregon State Marine Board - To assist with design
and permitting of an in-water fishing dock and paddlecraft launch facility at Grey Cliffs
Park. Feedback summarized submitted to OSMB to move forward. They would like to hire
their permit specialist before starting moving this project forward. Hiring is anticipated in
August 2022.

PROJECTS & MISC

5. Riverwalk Project (OPRD Grants x2) — Reviewed all staff comments of 60% design at 7/19
TAC meeting. Reviewed 60% cost estimate. Moving into 90% design. Held a construction
strategy session on 7/25 with PW to see what in-kind work can be done as part of the
project. Inventoried splash pad equipment for determining salvageability of existing
equipment for consultants. Discussed Flying Eagle canoe placement with Council on 7/20.
For permitting, stage and structure will require architectural review before the PC
(anticipated in the early fall with the building permit). Submitted letter of support for the
NPS (and subsequently the LWCF) to be included in a 6-month exemption from Buy
America/Build America Program. This could have major financial impacts to our funding
source for the Riverwalk if we are subjected to Buy America/Build America requirements.

6. Riverfront Streets/Utilities Design/Engineering —Streets/Utilities Project went to bid on
6/30. Attended mandatory pre-bid meeting/project walkthrough on 7/19. Bid opening
scheduled for 8/2.

7. St. Helens Industrial Business Park (SHIBP) Public Infrastructure Design— Work Order 1
approved - 30% design for Phase | infrastructure & permitting/grading work for Phase I
with Mackenzie. 2nd meeting with PGE to further sub-station facility design held on 6/30.
Anticipated land use applications include: CUP for sub-station facility, SDRm for
modifications to mill site (impacts to parking lot, buildings, access, etc), Partition for the
land division, and Sensitive Lands permitting for transmission lines which may impact

29



mailto:jdimsho@sthelensoregon.gov
mailto:jgraichen@sthelensoregon.gov

Item F.

wetlands or riparian areas/protection zones. Preparing for a pre-application meeting with
Mackenize and PGE to prepare for these applications. Goal is for PGE to be able to buy the
parcel from the City.

8. Organized attendance (and attended myself) for any volunteer commissioners to attend a
virtual OAPA/DLCD Planning Commissioner Training on 7/14. It was very informative and
worth the very small registration fee!

9. Safety Committee — I've been serving as alt for Mike DeRoia as the City Hall rep on this
committee, but I've never attended a meeting until 7/19. Conducted safety walk-through
of City Hall and the Court/UB buildings on 7/26 with Mike.

Jenny Dimsho, AICP

Associate Planner / Community Development Project Manager
City of St. Helens

(503) 366-8207

jdimsho@sthelensoregon.gov

30



mailto:jdimsho@sthelensoregon.gov

	Top
	Item A.	Minutes - July
	071222 PC Minutes DRAFT

	Item B.	Architectural Design Guidelines Review for 230 Strand Street
	Architectural Guidelines for 230 Strand Street (Courthouse Annex)

	Item C.	Order and Conduct
	Order and Conduct of Public Hearing (072022 Draft)

	Item F.	Dept Report - July
	07JUL2022 Planning Dept Rept

	Bottom

